
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please contact Ann Jones - Tel: 0151 511 8276 or email: 
ann.jones@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 

The next meeting of the Committee is on Wednesday, 21 March 2018 
 

Schools Forum 
 
Wednesday, 21 February 2018 2.00 p.m. 
The Board Room - Municipal Building, 
Widnes 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2. HIGH NEEDS UPDATE 
 

1 - 10 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



REPORT TO:   Schools Forum  
 
DATE:    21 February 2018 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Education, Inclusion and 

Provision 
 
SUBJECT: High Needs Update 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report sets out the reductions to High Needs budgets required to set 

a balanced budget for 2018/2019.  It also signals the change in practice 
when applying for enhanced provision and seeks permission to make an 
application to the Secretary of State for exemption to the Minimum 
Funding Guarantee using the disapplication process.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That 
 

2.1 Schools Forum consider and agree options for the reduction 
of High Needs Funding ensuring that the budget is brought in 
line with the resources available. 

2.2 Schools Forum agree the changes to the funding of enhanced 
provision  

2.3 Schools Forum agree to an application to the Secretary of 
State to seek permission for exemption to the Minimum 
Funding Guarantee using the disapplication process. 

 
3.0  BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Nationally the level of demand for support for pupils with special 

educational needs has been increasing over recent years.  However, there 
has not been a corresponding increase in the level of funding allocated to 
Local Authorities to meet this need.   This position is reflected in Halton 
and was outlined to schools in the consultation in October 2017 and           
School Forum meetings in November 2017 and January 2018, as only a 
small increase of £73,000 was allocated to the Borough for 2018/2019. 
Representation was made to the Schools Minister Nick Gibb in November 
2017, about the funding pressures and the impact this is having on 
outcomes for children, young people and families in the Borough, 
however, unfortunately Halton was not allocated any further funding to 
meet the increasing costs pressures.  The expectation is that we must 
manage within the resources already available to us. 

 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



3.2 We have now utilised all our reserves to balance the high needs budget 
shortfall. It is therefore, no longer possible for us to continue to provide the 
increasing level of support requested by schools, colleges and settings 
and it is not sustainable to continue to increase the number of pupils 
placed both within our local specialist settings or independent specialist 
settings.  We must also address the increased number of pupils excluded 
from both primary and secondary schools.  Increasing numbers of children 
and young people are being educated in expensive independent provision 
and the costs associated with placing pupils in specialist provision such as 
The Bridge has significantly increased.  In addition, all Halton’s specialist 
provision is now full to capacity. 

 
3.3 To more effectively meet the needs of our children and young people we 

will be looking to build the capacity of all early years schools and settings.  
Many schools and settings report that they are struggling to support 
children exhibiting more challenging behaviour.  In response our specialist 
settings and support services are now developing an extensive range of 
CPD and support. 

 
3.4 Following the review of behaviour across the borough an outcome focused 

action plan has been developed and a Strategic Lead identified.  To 
provide the additional specialist support for schools and settings  
recruitment is now taking place for a Behaviour Support team.  Once 
established the team will work with schools and settings as well as  
parents and carers to build capacity, broker and commission effective 
support and model and share good practice. 

 
3.5 In addition, a review of service provision is being commissioned.  Work is 

also planned to take place with neighbouring authorities to develop an 
inclusion charter mark.  Once recruited the SEND Commissioner will 
undertake a review of independent placements including the costs and 
quality and opportunities for placement back within the borough will be 
explored. .    

 
3.6  Letters have been sent to all independent settings advising them of the 

challenging financial situation and notifying them that we do not expect to 
see increases in their fees.  They have also been asked to consider how 
they can reduce their current costs. 

 
3.7 Following the consultation with schools in October 2017 and the School 

Forum meeting in October 2018 it was agreed that 0.5% could be 
transferred from the schools block to the High Needs Block.   Prior to the 
allocation of individual school budgets a sum of £421,594 was there 
added to the High Needs budget thereby reducing the total shortfall. 

 
 

Page 2



3.8 Detailed below is the full range of savings proposals required to reduce 
the level of overspend in 2017/2018 and to balance the budget in 
2018/2019.  Please note that these savings are spread across each sector 
of provision.  

 

 
Saving Area 
 

 
Budget 

 
Comment 

 
Independent  Provision 
 

 
£398,000 

 
This reduction will bring the 
costs in line with the budget 
which has been overspending 
in recent years. 
 

 
Inter Authority 

 
£80,000 

 
Reduction in the costs of 
placing Halton children in 
other authority provision. 
 

 
Pupil Referral Unit 

 
£200,000 

 
This is a one- off reduction to 
the budget.  In the next few 
months a review of top up 
levels will be undertaken. 
 

 
Early Years Top Up 
Funding 
 

 
£80,000 

 
This funding will be met from 
the Early Years allocation. 
 

 
Behaviour Support 
Team 

 
£127,930 

 
The recruitment timeline for 
the new Behaviour support is 
September 2018 saving 4/12 
of the allocated budget. 
 

 
Post-16 Funding 
 
 

 
£300,000 

 
Funding levels for element 2 & 
3 for Riverside College is 
capped at the same level 
 

 
Equipment Budget 
 

 
£20,000 

 
Budget has been halved. 

 
Staffing and supplies 
 

 
£41,000 

 
Reduction in central staffing 
and supplies. 

Page 3



 
Contingency 

 
£8,185 

 
High Needs Contingency 
budget 
 

 
Special Schools 
 
 

 
£172,000 

 
Reduction in the level of 
funding to the 4 special 
schools back to the proposed 
level for 2017-18. 
 

 
Reduction in top up 
funding for primary and 
secondary schools 
 

 
£776,829 

 
This reduction leave a total top 
up figure of £1 million. 

 
 
3.9 As the level of reduction in budgets proposed for the special schools is 

above the minimum funding guarantee (MFG) of minus 1.5% all four 
special schools must agree the funding reduction.  If that agreement can 
be reached locally a disapplication form will need to be completed 
requesting exemption to the MFG. This form must be submitted to the 
Secretary of State for consideration. 

 
3.10 On the basis of the current level of spending commitments in 2017/2018 

and assuming no further increase in commitments for 2018/2019 the 
savings proposed above should allow a balanced budget to be set. 

 
3.11 To achieve the scale of reduction in the top up funding for primary and 

secondary schools when an application is made for enhanced provision 
the panel will take into consideration the schools balance and the level of 
funding allocated to the school in their delegated budget for 2018/2019.  
For LA maintained schools at the end of 2016/2017 there was a balance 
of over £3.6 million and for secondary schools a balance of over 
£627,000.  As is the case with LA primary and secondary schools, any 
academy will need to provide details of their level of balance for 
consideration by the panel.  In addition the panel will be provided with 
details of the funding allocated in 2018/2019 through the National Funding 
Formula.  Schools will be expected to make provision to support all 
children through their delegated budget unless they can demonstrate to 
the panel that they do not have the resources to do.  Appendix A shows 
the year end balances for LA maintained schools over the last 3 years 
along with the budget allocation for 2018/2019.  Annex B shows details of 
the level of top up funding received by each school over the last 3 years. 

 

Page 4



3.12 Without reserves it is essential future high needs spending is contained 
within the budget available.  Careful monitoring will be undertaken on each 
area of expenditure with a report on progress presented to each School 
Forum meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                

 
 
  
. 
 
  

Page 5



Annex A Year end balances as at Change in 

School 31/03/15 31/03/16 31/03/17 budget for 2018-19

Ditton Nursery 7,239.49 21,551.78 4,021.51 Not yet determined

Birchfield Nursery 38,959.80 52,399.85 16,945.26 Not yet determined

Warrington Road 47,749.05 25,625.26 12,402.24 Not yet determined

93,948.34 99,576.89 33,369.01

St Marys 216,450.04 296,832.72 178,498.12 9,813.00

St Edwards 101,184.23 136,236.48 110,651.91 28,785.00

Weston Point 161,272.39 201,949.19 197,469.62 80,350.00

Victoria Road 166,028.16 127,391.59 128,748.40 14,592.00

Weston 104,291.28 105,136.72 19,651.28 30,970.00

St Clements 32,257.62 49,673.17 76,166.67 44,677.00

Westfield 15,363.83 9,419.13 9,911.14 6,763.00

Halton Lodge 117,965.47 133,608.45 2,461.15 41,119.00

Castle View 123,716.84 111,837.62 105,308.12 -5,497.00

Astmoor 94,475.17 33,996.99 32,830.15 28,618.00

The Brow 80,819.94 106,151.68 106,576.06 75,274.00

Woodside 82,320.16 97,320.81 125,904.31 26,877.00

The Holy Spirit 65,845.82 73,837.28 26,918.81 9,329.00

Pewithall 52,258.53 93,576.06 70,426.00 54,799.00

Hallwood Park 84,784.67 157,605.86 89,848.00 -19,687.00

Runcorn All Saints 130,565.36 46,653.35 4,337.29              14,747.00

OLMOS 214,863.57 241,269.52 115,088.72 36,115.00

Hill View 144,829.01 139,796.13 103,881.18 17,421.00

Beechwood 87,580.96 73,758.63 47,716.08 5,731.00

Brookvale 301,284.82 253,754.19 237,429.02 37,343.00

St Martins 19,216.51 41,134.69 8,040.43 46,846.00

Murdishaw West 86,974.67 78,469.81 53,496.49 19,986.00

Gorsewood 192,090.86 189,383.36 158,716.04 8,967.00

St Bertelines 112,113.63 77,819.83 27,139.06 60,855.00

Windmill Hill 59,133.34 29,493.14 20,810.29 69,390.00

P
age 6



Moore 32,048.17 57,721.06 35,439.41 30,154.00

Hale 75,955.92 67,621.61 45,887.99 34,488.00

St Bedes Junior 77,954.02 113,045.27 173,584.14 123,111.00

St Bedes Infant 102,818.49 153,071.57 145,354.37 16,873.00
Spinney Ave 26,965.03 48,005.73 48,450.51 41,800.00

St Michaels 146,444.71 97,978.89 90,481.26 57,265.00

Farnworth 43,422.21 64,953.63 17,380.75 96,812.00

Halebank 90,346.27 96,983.81 62,987.85 -301.00

St Gerards 195,278.02 239,787.62 178,609.88 -187.00

Ditton Primary 75,322.12 93,523.53 -212.43 86,826.00

Simms Cross 220,998.45 199,966.72 170,370.73 152,681.00

Oakfield 193,245.65 84,137.23 79,366.55 80,208.00

Moorfield 43,456.37 19,450.72 69,177.17 -10,533.00

OLOPS 61,582.18 70,192.24 60,572.78 42,530.00

St Basils 65,684.14 14,274.12 1,067.12 35,562.00

All Saints Upton 20,366.97 -13,914.66 2,500.12 39,236.00

Fairfield 521,505.73 260,245.50 205,232.26 127,220.00

Lunts Heath 137,802.50 67,486.80 56,191.69 89,913.00

St John Fisher 133,303.80 186,219.77 155,552.59 -26,064.00

5,112,187.63 4,826,857.56 3,656,019.08 1,761,777.00

St Chads 440,764.66 131,231.86 169,512.53 -478,700.00

The Grange 252,515.33 223,562.91 101,559.50 -90,700.00

Sts Peter & Paul 799,293.25 233,113.63 151,871.16 8,142.00

The Bridge 64,635.07 210,263.53 204,076.84 Not yet determined

1,557,208.31 798,171.93 627,020.03 -561,258.00 

Ashley 90,372.95 99,438.04 9,339.96 Not yet determined

Chesnut Lodge 268,597.27 255,423.36 124,161.46 Not yet determined

Brookfields 312,555.02 273,837.23 92,263.98 Not yet determined

671,525.24 628,698.63 225,765.40

Grand Total 7,434,869.52 6,353,305.01 4,542,173.52 1,200,519.00

P
age 7



Academies

Bridgewater Park 54,162.00

Palacefields 19,244.00

St Augustines -3,121.00

Daresbury 10,432.00

Widnes 17,173.00

OBA 351,096.00

The Heath 73,171.00

OCA 42,580.00

Wade Deacon -22,421.00

Sandymoor 373,780.00

Academies Total 916,096.00

P
age 8



Top-up funding Annex B

Primary - enhanced provision 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

St Marys 24,069.84            10,042.85               1,926.00           

St Edwards 25,461.24            34,216.68               34,826.32        

Weston Point 37,548.16            64,357.78               33,456.43        

Victoria Road 41,987.74            27,098.29               30,157.10        

Weston 30,058.61            37,367.06               48,049.29        

St Clements 3,840.70              -                           4,367.86           

Westfield 30,872.65            24,869.54               28,365.98        

Halton Lodge 44,413.73            43,752.10               43,982.18        

Castle View 15,707.08            11,145.57               5,952.91           

Astmoor 27,390.56            25,430.76               25,592.14        

The Brow 38,025.11            40,547.03               26,357.40        

Woodside 18,000.38            34,467.71               21,643.85        

The Holy Spirit 33,174.13            31,476.91               19,822.12        

Bridgewater Park 29,450.77            19,485.02               12,614.07        

Pewithall 20,268.58            19,759.36               9,793.61           

Palacefields 31,294.02            19,158.69               26,528.49        

Hallwood Park 29,411.32            33,036.86               39,643.52        

St Augustines 26,929.75            18,547.26               11,927.34        

Runcorn All Saints 16,976.55            27,892.61               15,746.91        

OLMOS 40,689.58            40,660.89               23,838.92        

Hill View 27,915.92            31,207.95               32,346.43        

Beechwood 6,481.86              7,853.54                 10,514.42        

Brookvale 43,587.14            41,702.65               48,374.95        

St Martins 6,501.00              9,142.74                 15,095.65        

Murdishaw West 49,237.02            50,544.15               30,121.37        

Gorsewood 46,509.80            45,435.77               56,282.03        

St Bertelines 37,852.98            35,132.93               40,491.90        

Windmill Hill 9,162.46              12,814.89               18,165.84        

Daresbury 25,316.90            33,938.76               21,607.99        

Moore 42,366.59            30,741.30               25,558.31        

Hale 10,962.68            4,581.23                 4,581.23           

St Bedes Junior 43,848.92            39,941.88               14,986.27        

St Bedes Infant 38,494.89            36,599.64               26,287.84        

Spinney Ave 17,544.95            11,165.29               11,767.76        

St Michaels -                        2,660.88                 4,581.23           

Farnworth 31,331.67            42,493.38               41,264.28        

Halebank 14,355.12            16,626.91               11,063.09        

St Gerards 39,506.17            39,823.54               33,136.54        

Ditton Primary 27,690.86            27,741.10               22,507.61        

Simms Cross 29,649.80            34,885.49               29,816.93        

Widnes Academy 9,408.11              3,292.03                 -                    

Oakfield 54,153.55            40,429.59               51,214.36        

Moorfield 34,783.29            18,685.33               5,952.91           

OLOPS 21,500.41            21,819.57               23,338.66        

St Basils 30,402.88            28,283.50               21,238.62        

All Saints Upton 55,833.64            56,792.92               45,452.57        

Fairfield 65,446.15            60,884.65               47,488.81        

Page 9



Lunts Heath 27,876.48            40,253.87               36,599.64        

St John Fisher 75,858.37            79,272.33               67,997.66        

1,489,150.11      1,468,060.76         1,262,427.31   

Primary - resource base

Weston Point - 7 34,563.00            31,653.00               35,466.69        

Westfield - 6 29,969.00            13,867.00               -                    

The Brow - 17 14,072.00            17,354.00               14,154.00        

Woodside - 7 25,505.00            28,685.00               26,305.28        

Palacefields - 10 -                        -                           -                    

Simms Cross - 14 39,758.00            49,447.00               63,485.80        

Oakfield - 17 25,620.00            22,600.00               19,864.35        

169,487.00         163,606.00             159,276.12      

Secondary - enhanced provision

St Chads 36,805.84            31,130.85               41,841.31        

The Grange 118,408.23          110,120.77             95,974.54        

OBA 37,558.92            24,181.01               34,286.25        

The Heath 19,780.88            26,273.49               35,287.13        

OCA 24,891.06            17,919.69               7,233.14           

Wade Deacon 50,757.53            50,063.62               42,821.94        

Saints Peter & Paul 42,848.40            33,603.46               40,535.01        

Sandymoor 28,389.29            42,658.34               47,159.19        

359,440.15         335,951.23             345,138.51      

Secondary - resource base

The Grange - 30 116,583.00          115,072.00             109,765.05      

OCA - 10 6,179.00              5,693.00                 3,913.00           

Saints Peter & Paul - 6 21,054.00            24,340.00               24,030.69        

143,816.00         145,105.00             137,708.74      

Special

Ashley 942,522.79          915,340.00             977,994.01      

Chesnut Lodge 851,942.53          758,688.02             791,010.73      

Brookfields 897,306.00          796,716.00             810,458.27      

Cavendish 911,335.00          825,819.00             818,717.66      

3,603,106.32      3,296,563.02         3,398,180.67   

PRU

The Bridge 734,823.00          956,610.00             1,126,295.00   

Total 6,499,822.58      6,365,896.01         6,429,026.34   

Page 10


	Agenda
	2 High Needs Update
	School Forum Year End Balances and 2018-2019 Budget Changes
	School Forum Top up Funding Annex B


